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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Ward and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: Richard Thompson, Interim City Manager 
 
FROM: Jim Arndt, Public Works Director 
  Anna Luke, Management Analyst 
 
DATE: August 3, 2010 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration to Approve the Solid Waste Request For Proposal (RFP) for Public 

Distribution to Interested Waste Haulers   
   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review and approve the City of Manhattan Beach’s Solid 
Waste RFP and Franchise Agreement package for public release. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
The Request for Proposal (RFP) process requires competitive proposals from interested haulers.  
User rates cannot be determined until RFP bids are received and pricing from bidding haulers is 
made public, and Council selects a solid waste hauler.  If the proposed user rates exceed the amount 
of the existing user rates, a 218 vote is required, which allows residents to approve or reject the 
proposed rates for the next solid waste contract.  The City’s Administrative Fee covers the costs of 
City Staff in the execution of the solid waste contract, which is not included in the contractor 
proposal and will be added separately. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City’s current solid waste contract with Waste Management will expire on April 30, 2011.  At 
the April 6, 2010 meeting, the City Council directed staff to pursue the Request for Proposal 
process for the next solid waste contract, and on April 20, 2010 awarded a professional services 
contract to HF&H Consultants, LLC to assist the City with this process.  City Council has had 
discussions surrounding the content and direction of the solid waste contract at the following public 
meetings:  
 

May 5, 2009 April 6, 2010 
July 7, 2009 May 4, 2010 

December 1, 2009 July 16, 2010 
February 16, 2010 July 20, 2010 
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In addition to the above City Council meetings, the Environmental Task Force (ETF) Solid Waste 
and Recycling Subcommittee (SWRS) discussed the current contract through its term from October 
2008 – April 2010.  ETF meetings were open to the public and attended by City Council ETF 
Representatives, Mayor Ward and Councilmember Cohen. 

 
On July 6, 2010 the Finance Subcommittee met to discuss the draft RFP and Franchise Agreement. 
 The Finance Subcommittee approved the RFP except for two areas discussed at the July 20, 2010 
meeting.  At that meeting, the City Council provided direction on cost for an additional trash cart 
and established a required hauler diversion rate of 44%. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The attached RFP and Franchise Agreement have been reviewed and approved by the Finance 
Subcommittee.  The new franchise agreement includes greater efficiencies, programs, and 
accountability which will assist the City with meeting and exceeding the state’s requirements under 
AB 939, which requires all cities in California to recycle 50% of its waste.  These changes reflect 
many of the recommendations of the Environmental Task Force Solid Waste and Recycling 
Subcommittee and the City’s overall environmental goals regarding residential collection rates. 
 
A key element in the new solid waste contract is the tiered-rate structure for single-family 
residences.  The following provides a brief explanation to the overall structure and cart options for 
single-family residential customers: 
 
Tiered-Rate Structure 
The City will be changing its solid waste billing from a flat rate structure to a tiered-rate structure 
for gray trash carts only.  All single-family residential households, including the Sand Section, will 
be able to choose a hauler-provided 35, 64, or 96 gallon trash cart.  A cost will be assigned to each 
container based on size.  The cost is only assessed to trash carts.  Recycling (blue) and Green 
Waste (green) carts will still be distributed to residents and serviced at no additional cost.    
 
Since most Manhattan Beach residents have a 64 gallon gray trash container, the haulers will 
propose a rate for the 64 gallon gray trash cart (x).  The following tiered-rate structure is for the 
first trash cart-only, and does not include the City’s Administrative Fee that will be added during 
the billing process): 
 
     35 gallons: x  -  $4 
     64 gallons: x    (most MB residents have a 64 gallon cart) 
     96 gallons: x  +  $4 
 
Additional Trash Carts 
If a household chooses to have more than one trash cart, the cost of the additional cart(s) is listed 
below (which does not include the City’s Administrative Fee that will be added during the billing 
process): 
     35 gallons:  $4.00 per additional trash cart(s) 
     64 gallons:  $6.00 per additional trash cart(s) 
     96 gallons:  $8.00 per additional trash cart(s) 
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Schedule 
Many tasks need to be completed in order to meet a deadline of May 1, 2011.  If any tasks are 
delayed, the City may need to pursue an extension with the current hauler, Waste Management, to 
maintain service to all customers until the new contract begins.  The following schedule includes 
tentative dates to execute each task. 
 

DATE DESCRIPTION OF TASK 
August 3, 2010 City Council approve RFP package 
August 4, 2010 Public release of RFP package 
August 13, 2010 Pre-proposal conference with HF&H, staff, proposers 
September 16, 2010 @ 3:00 PM Deadline to submit proposals 
September/October 2010 HF&H evaluate proposals 
November 2010 HF&H meet with staff & Finance Subcommittee to review preliminary 

information on proposals 
November 9, 2010 City Council approve Administrative Fee and any ordinance changes 
November 2010 Interview finalists, check references 
November/December 2010 HF&H, staff and final proposers meet to negotiate final agreement 
December 2010 Finance Subcommittee review final agreement 
December 7, 2010 City Council Meeting City Council award hauler with new agreement, establish rates, review 

Administrative Fee, approve any necessary ordinance changes 
December 10, 2010 Start 218 process 
February 1, 2011 Public hearing for 218 process 
Early February, 2011 Hauler send out mailing for cart size options to customers 
March 4, 2011 Hauler provides all new customer cart size information to City Billing 

Department 
March/April 2011 City Billing Department inputs new customer cart information for May 1, 

2011 start date 
April 1 – 30, 2011 Hauler removes old carts & delivers new carts to customers 
April 1, 2011 Hauler mails final 30 day reminder to all customers of new contract to 

begin May 1, 2011 
May 1, 2011 New contract begins 

 
CONCLUSION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council review and approve the City of Manhattan Beach’s Solid 
Waste RFP and Franchise Agreement package for public release. 
 
 
 
Attachment:  
(1) Request for Proposals for Integrated Solid Waste Management Services 
 
 
Cc: Laith Ezzet, HF&H Consultants, LLC 
 Bruce Moe, City of Manhattan Beach Finance Director 






























































































































































































































































































































































































































































